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Honorable Sean O’Donnell 
Trial Date:  March 7, 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 
FOR KING COUNTY 

 
 

GEORGE E. ENGSTROM, an individual, and 
JOHN E. STOCKWELL, an individual, 
 
   Plaintiffs, 
 
  vs. 
 
MICROSOFT CORPORATION, a Washington 
corporation,  
 
   Defendant. 
 

 
No. 15-2-04785-0 SEA 
 
JOHN P. SHERIDAN 
DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF 
PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION TO 
ENFORCE NOTICE OF 
UNAVAILABILITY AND TO 
REQUIRE DEFENDANT TO 
FOLLOW CIVIL RULES 

 

1. I, Jack Sheridan, make the following statement based upon my personal 

knowledge. I am counsel of record representing Plaintiffs George Engstrom and 

John Stockwell in this matter. 

2. I became involved in the case in September 2014 after I was approached by 

the plaintiffs following a failed mediation with Microsoft, which is represented by 

Rob Maguire at Davis Wright.  

3. Over the following months, we drafted a complaint for use in the case, and 

the firm considered various legal theories. I decided that owing to the high-level 

positions held by the plaintiffs, it made sense to send a draft of the complaint to 

Mr. Maguire to ensure that nothing contained in the complaint could be considered 
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highly sensitive business confidential information or trade secrets. On November 

24, 2014, I sent a copy of the draft to Mr. Maguire, who reviewed the draft and sent 

back a marked-up copy on December 4, 2014.  In the final complaint, I deleted 

words in accordance with Mr. Maguire’s stated concerns.  

I also learned that Microsoft has its employees sign employment agreements 

that require the return of all documents to Microsoft upon separation.  My 

investigation revealed that Microsoft has no process for obtaining such documents 

from departing employees, and learned that Microsoft does not even provide copies 

of the employment agreements to departing employees at the time of departure.  

Nevertheless, to avoid possible counter-claims, I had the plaintiffs assemble all 

Microsoft documents and delete any copies. This was accomplished over the next 

several weeks.  Those documents were put on DVDs and on a portable hard drive 

and stored under lock and key at my law firm.   

I also learned the Plaintiff Engstrom had made a few audio recordings while 

at work, which I viewed as possibly in violation of RCW 9.73.030, which prohibits 

the audio recording of private conversations.  I did not listen to the recordings, and 

thus could not evaluate whether they met the standard, but felt that they should be 

safeguarded and deposited with the court.   

On February 6, 2015, I delivered the entire body of Microsoft documents to 

Mr. Maguire and advised him of the existence of the audio recordings.  In the letter 

transmitting the documents, I wrote: 

We have been getting organized in preparation for filing the lawsuit. In an 
abundance of caution, because there is a prior employment agreement with 
confidentiality provisions stating that documents and emails created during 
employment are Microsoft's property to be returned upon termination, we 
are returning all Microsoft documents held in the possession of our clients 
at the time of their termination. Enclosed herein are thirty (30) DVDs, 
which represent two copies of the documents, along with an external hard 
drive #0629901771. There may be attorney client privileged documents in 
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the stack, which we have not reviewed. Do not destroy or otherwise 
modify the documents on the DVDs or external drive, since they may 
contain information relevant to the lawsuit. However, if there are ACP 
documents in the stack, they may be deleted. I am hopeful that we can talk 
about having those DVDs returned once they are reviewed and any ACP 
files are removed. It will simplify discovery. 

Also, there are a few audio files, which came into our possession. We 
intend to deposit those with the court once the lawsuit is filed. They are 
also on DVDs. I'm thinking it makes sense for the parties to stipulate that 
the court is the proper repository for the files. 

Let's meet and talk about that. 

Our clients have taken steps to ensure that no other copies of the Microsoft 
documents and audio files are kept. Please acknowledge receipt. 

A true and correct copy is attached as Exhibit 1.   

Mr. Maguire made no inquiry about the audio files for the next month.  I left 

on vacation in February, and the case was filed after his return.  The filing was 

covered by local, national, and international press.   

On February 27, 2015, after the media coverage, Mr. Maguire contacted me 

and indicated that he wanted to come and listen to the tapes.  I was at a hearing in 

Thurston County that morning and did not return to the office.  I was the only 

person with a key to the locked file cabinet storing the audio recordings.  Mr. 

Maguire indicated that he was against storing the audio recordings with the Court 

because they may not be secure.  He suggested that they be given to a third party, 

and he identified Eric Blank, an attorney in Mount Vernon.  I agreed, and retained 

Mr. Blank. Exhibit 2 is a true and correct copy of my agreement with Mr. Blank.  

The contract provides that he will secure the recordings, and make a copy for 

Mr. Maguire. The audio recordings were picked up on March 2, 2015, and a copy 

was provided to Mr. Maguire the same day.    

On March 5, 2015, I filed a notice of unavailability, which is a typical filing 

in King County, and which in my experience, is honored by attorneys practicing in 
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Seattle.  Mr. Maguire sent a letter the same day, and spoke with me on March 6, 

2015, by telephone. 

In the phone call, Mr. Maguire indicated that Microsoft insisted that the 

plaintiffs sign declarations indicating what was contained in his letter: 

As I previously requested, Microsoft needs prompt assurances under 
oath concerning its information and now also the recordings of its 
employees. Please provide by Sunday, March 8th, sworn declarations 
from your clients stating, if true: 

• Your clients did not record private conversations of any other 
Microsoft employees; 
• Your clients do not possess any recordings of private 
conversations involving Microsoft employees; 
• Your clients have not provided copies of recordings of private 
conversations involving Microsoft employees to anyone other 
than Eric Blank; 
Your clients have not played for anyone any recordings of 
private conversations 
involving Microsoft employees; 
• Your clients have returned all Microsoft information, 
including all electronic and hard copy documents without 
retaining any copies or providing any copies to anyone else; 
and 
• Your clients did not use or disclose any Microsoft information 
since their employment with Microsoft ended. 

If your clients will not provide sworn statements, Microsoft anticipates 
seeking assistance from the court to ensure protection of its information 
and employees. 

Later, he indicated that I make those representations.  I told him, “You put me 

in the position of speaking for my clients, and I will not do that.  This is regular 

discovery.  I told you that I dilligently worked to obtain, secure, and return all 

documents, and to secure all recordings, and that you have nothing to worry about.  I 

will stand behind that. ” 
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I indicated that my past conduct (consulting about the complaint, securing and 

returning the documents, and securing the audio recordings) demonstrated that 

Microsoft has nothing to worry about, and that Microsoft had no basis for claiming an 

emergency to justify going outside the Civil Rules.  I indicated that this was normal 

discovery, and the Microsoft was behaving like a bully, and should not be filing 

anything during the Thurston County trial.  I challenged Mr. Maguire to state who 

would submit a declaration under oath showing that there was any risk.  Mr. Maguire 

had no response, but Mr. Maguire would not agree to refrain from filing motions 

during the trial.  An impasse was reached, and this motion follows so the issues are 

resolved before trial.   

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Washington 

and of the United States that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge. 

Dated this 6th day of March, 2015, in Seattle, Washington. 

 

  
s/John P. Sheridan 

 John P. Sheridan, WSBA # 21473 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on the below date I electronically filed the foregoing document 

via the Court’s CM/ECF system, which will serve such filing to the following persons 

via messenger: 

Rob Maguire 
DAVIS WRIGHT TREMAINE LLP 
1201 Third Avenue, Suite 2200 
Seattle, WA  98101 
Phone:  (206) 757-8094 
Email:  robmaguire@dwt.com 

DATED this 6th day of March, 2015, at Seattle, Washington. 
 
 
   s/Patti Lane      
Patti Lane, Legal Assistant 
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The Sheridan Law Firm, P.S. 

Tel: 206-381-5949 

VIA MESSENGER 

Rob Maguire 
Davis Wright Tremaine 
201 Third A venue, Suite 2200 
Seattle, WA 98101 

Attorneys at Law 
Hoge Building, Suite 1200 

705 Second Avenue 
Seattle, WA 98104 

www.sheridanlawfirm.com 

February 6, 2015 

Re: George "Eric" Engstrom and John Edward "Ted" Stockwell 

Dear Rob: 

Fax: 206-447-9206 

We have been getting organized in preparation for filing the lawsuit. In an abundance of 
caution, because there is a prior employment agreement with confidentiality provisions 
stating that documents and emails created during employment are Microsoft's property to 
be returned upon termination, we are returning all Microsoft documents held in the 
possession of our clients at the time of their termination. Enclosed herein are thirty (30) 
DVDs, which represent two copies of the documents, along with an external hard drive 
#0629901771. There may be attorney client privileged documents in the stack, which we 
have not reviewed. Do not destroy or otherwise modify the documents on the DVDs or 
external drive, since they may contain information relevant to the lawsuit. However, if 
there are ACP documents in the stack, they may be deleted. I am hopeful that we can talk 
about having those DVDs returned once they are reviewed and any ACP files are 
removed. It will simplify discovery. 

Also, there are a few audio files, which came into our possession. We intend to deposit 
those with the court once the lawsuit is filed. They are also on DVDs. I'm thinking it 
makes sense for the parties to stipulate that the court is the proper repository for the files. 
Let's meet and talk about that. 

Our clients have taken steps to ensure that no other copies of the Microsoft documents 
and audio files are kept. Please acknowledge receipt. 



Rob Maguire 
February 6, 2015 
Page 2 

I'm in Maui next week, but back on 2/15. I can talk and exchange emails next week, but 
with some limited availability. I look forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

Enclosures: 30 DVDs and external drive 

I, , acknowledge receipt of a package from the Sheridan Law 
Firm, P.S. containing 30 DVDs and the external hard drive. 

Date Name: 
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